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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of Cork Simon Community ("the 
Company", "the Community" or "Cork Simon") for the year ended 31 December 2020 and its subsidiary, Simon 
Community (South East) Company Limited by Guarantee ("South East Simon") (together "the Group"). 

Irish law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year giving a true and fair view 
of the Group's and company's assets, liabilities and financial position at the end of the financial year and the 
profit or loss of the Group for the financial year. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) and Irish statute comprising Companies Act 2014 as applied 
in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) (FRS 102) 'Accounting Reporting by 
Charities' as jointly published by the Charity Commission for England and Wales and the office of the Scottish 
Charity Regulator, who are recognised by the UK Accounting Standards Board (ASB) as the appropriate body 
to issue SORPs for the charity sector in the UK. Financial reporting in line with the SORP is considered best 
practice for charities in Ireland. The directors consider the adoption of the SORP requirements is the most 
appropriate practice and presentation to properly reflect and disclose the activities of the Group and Company. 

Overview of Group 
On 19 November 2020, Cork Simon acquired control of South East Simon (see note 22). This has been 
accounted for as using merger accounting in the Group financial statements. South East Simon is a company 
limited by guarantee in the Republic of Ireland and its registered office is 10A Waterside, Waterford. 

Objectives and activities 
The parent undertaking, Cork Simon Community, was founded in 1971 for the charitable purpose of alleviating 
homelessness and the problems associated with homelessness. South East Simon Community was 
established in 2003 with a similar purpose. Both entities work in solidarity with men and women who have past 
or present experience of homelessness, or at risk of future homelessness. We campaign for a society without 
homelessness. Both entities particularly concerned for people whose experience of homelessness is not just a 
short-term setback but is a longer term manifestation of deep social exclusion. 

Homelessness takes many forms. Sleeping rough is very visible but many people's experiences of 
homelessness are often hidden. Homelessness causes countless practical difficulties. It also has a detrimental 
effect on people's health and well-being. It is an isolating experience and people experiencing homelessness 
are some of the most vulnerable and socially excluded people in our society. 

Many people seeking both entities' services are experiencing the following or a combination of the following: 
suffering from the impacts of poverty, childhood trauma, social deprivation, low income, weak social and 
familial supports and networks, social exclusion, sleeping rough, physical health problems, a range of mental 
health issues (including chronic), addiction, substance misuse, behavioural concerns, surviving abuse, learning 
difficulties and self-harming. 

The continuation of the housing crisis in Ireland has made it even more difficult for people to find and access 
housing and for people who have been pushed into homelessness. 

Both entities offer a range of services in response to these needs including low threshold emergency 
accommodation, key working and case management, and a range of housing and accommodation with 
appropriate levels of care and support. Both entities are each an Approved Housing Body and social 
landlords. We work to a Housing Led approach to addressing homelessness. 

A Housing Led approach embodies a commitment to housing as a social right. The aim of this approach is to 
minimise the number of steps and the amount of time a person has to take from the point of becoming 
homeless to the point of being rehoused. A Housing First or Housing Led approach provides immediate or 
near-immediate re-housing without any requirement that people experiencing homelessness show themselves 
to be 'housing ready' before they are re-housed. Support to sustain their housing and improve their health, 
well-being and social integration is provided to people in their own home and use of that support is something 
over which people exercise considerable choice and control. 

The following values are inherent in what both entities do and how we work: equality, rights based, social 
justice & social action, trauma informed, choice, respect, person centred, client led, empowerment, diversity, 
inclusiveness, community engagement, activism, engagement, acceptance, understanding, dynamism, 
openness to new ideas, collaboration, supportiveness. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Objectives and activities - continued 

In 2020, Cork Simon provided the following services: 

Outreach team: Working on the street and from our Day Service, the team supports people sleeping 
rough, surviving in squats or people who have no other option but to stay with friends - people on the 
very edge of homelessness. Often the first point of contact for people falling into homelessness, the 
team works to make sure the most appropriate supports are available to address each person's 
individual needs. These supports include access to accommodation and housing and harm reduction 
supports relevant to problem drug and alcohol use. The Outreach Team continue to operate 
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. 

• Soup Run: Our first service back in 1971 - and it continues to operate every night of the year. A team 
of part-time volunteers, often joined by a member of our Outreach Team, offers respite from the 
elements, hot nourishing food and a listening ear in a warm, friendly, non-judgemental environment. 
During the course of the pandemic, and in line with public health guidelines the Soup Run operated as 
a takeaway service. 

• Emergency shelter: Open around the clock, the shelter provides care, accommodation, and one-to-
one support for people each night. The shelter team works with each resident, assessing their needs 
and working with them on a clear pathway out of homelessness as quickly as possible. During the 
course of the pandemic the Shelter ended use of double rooms in line with public health guidelines. 
Staff worked closely with Cork city council to ensure alternative emergency accommodation was 
available. 

Night Light: Additional emergency accommodation in response to a growing need, consisting of up to 
16 spaces per night. Night Light beds are medium threshold and are available during night-time hours. 
These extra emergency spaces were first put in place as part of Cork City's Winter initiative in 
November 2017. The need has been such that we have continued to provide these places throughout 
the year. The capacity of the main dormitory area had to be reduced from 16 to 5 in order to function 
in line with public health guidelines. Staff worked closely with Cork city council to ensure alternative 
emergency accommodation was available. 

Day service: A hub of activity housing a specialist team of doctors, nurses, counsellors and other 
health professionals who provide the most appropriate healthcare for people who are sleeping rough 
or staying in our Emergency Shelter. Our Rough Sleeper Service also operates from the centre, 
providing rough sleepers with shower and laundry facilities, breakfast and an opportunity to explore 
housing optipns. The centre is also used for a variety of training courses. Following the COVID-19 
pandemic the numbers allowed into the centre at any one time was reduced to 5 persons in line with 
public health guidelines. 

• Youth homelessness and drug prevention service: Working specifically with 18 to 26 year olds 
who are homeless or at risk of homelessness, and who are either at risk of drug use or are active drug 
users, the service offers a range of direct one-to-one supports, and refers people to other services as 
appropriate. This service continued as normal during the pandemic 

Housing support services: Cork Simon provides a rapid resettlement service and intensive support 
services in line with our Housing-Led approach to tackling homelessness. This means supporting 
people to move out of homelessness as quickly as possible and into permanent housing with a 
tailored visiting support package for as long as each person needs. As social landlord we provide 
some permanent housing directly, we make housing available in the private rented sector though our 
Social Rentals initiative and we work closely with other social housing providers so as to make sure 
the most appropriate housing is available to suit people's individual needs. In order to reduce 
pandemic related risks housing support was delivered over the phone and via video calls, with fact to 
face interventions being used only when strictly necessary. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Objectives and Activities - continued 

• Cork Region Housing First Service: Cork Simon is the lead agency for the Cork Region Housing 
First Service. The service is delivered in partnership with Focus Ireland and with the Health Service 
Executive (HSE). The service was established in April 2020 and provides housing linked to intensive 
case management, clinical nursing, addiction counselling and related support for people who are long 
term homeless with very complex support needs. The target for the service is to have 40 tenancies in 
place by 2022. Half of the units are to be delivered by Cork Simon / Focus Ireland and the remainder 
by Cork City Council. In order to reduce pandemic related risks housing support was delivered over 
the phone and via teams or zoom, with fact to face interventions being used only when strictly 
necessary. 

• High support housing: We also provide intensive levels of round-the-clock care every day for men 
and women whose health and other personal support needs are such that they are unable to live 
independently. Residents have their own room and share kitchen and other common areas. 
Experienced care workers and trained volunteers staff all five high-support houses. One of these 
houses, Gateway, operates as a recovery-oriented pre-stabilisation service for people with addiction 
issues. Another, Mill House, provides support to people with severe problem-alcohol use and allows 
for controlled drinking on the premises in line with harm reduction principles. 

•.	 Specialist services: A range of services which include a drug and alcohol programme, an addiction 
aftercare support and housing service (providing 7 aftercare beds in two houses), the provision of 
counselling and addiction counselling services, that coordinate with the Youth Homelessness and 
Drug Prevention programme, the Employment & Training Service initiatives, the Activities Team and a 
Community Employment Scheme. 

• Employment & training service: The team supports people who have often left school early and are 
long-term unemployed to complete their formal education, retrain and return to the workforce. It is a 
practical way to help people build self-confidence and develop new skills. The team works closely with 
external education providers and training agencies. Getting people back to work and back to 
participating in the wider community can make all the difference in helping to make sure people can 
leave homelessness behind them for good. Employment & Training works closely with local 
employers to provide direct support to people by helping them to improve their employability through 
short-term work placements and ultimately full-time employment. This service was heavily impacted 
during the pandemic with classes being suspended for a period and staff redeployed, In person 
teaching was replaced with online options and supports and with the return to in-person education 
and training social distancing rules mean that reduced class sizes have been the norm. 

• Community engagement and activities programme: Working across all Cork Simon services, the 
team creates opportunities for people to build social support networks, build self-confidence, and 
interact positively with the wider community. The 'A-Team' tackles loneliness, boredom and isolation. 
Participation in activities can often be a doorway to further education and training. This service was 
heavily impacted during the pandemic with activities being suspended for a period and staff 
redeployed. 

• Campaigning programme: We communicate information and policy advocacy messages to 
stakeholders, the general public, to politicians, policy makers and influencers, among other. We work 
closely with the Simon Communities of Ireland in its national policy advocacy work. 

• Volunteering programme: We provide full time and part time volunteers, and student placement 
opportunities across our services. 

In 2020, South East Simon provided a similar range of services. These are outlined in detail in the separate 
financial statements on that company. They are not repeated here because South East Simon is included in 
the Group financial statements for six weeks in 2020. 

5 



Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS REPORT - continued 

Review of activities in 2020 
During the year we responded to an increase to the number of people seeking our range of services. 

s 936 people turned to Cork Simon Services for care and a range of supports in 2020. 

• Between the Emergency Shelter and the Nightlight, an average of 45 people per night relied on Cork 
Simon for emergency accommodation. 

•s Our Outreach service recorded 323 people sleeping rough for at least one night during 2020, of whom 68 
were women and 255 were men. 

. 395 people depended on our emergency shelter and night light for care and supports in the heart of Cork 
city. 39% of people turning to our emergency accommodation did so for the first time. 

o The Soup Run served 7,746 hot meals and provided one-to-one supports to on average 21 people per 
night. 

• 553 people presented to the Day Service during 2020. The majority were people who were rough sleeping 
or in a range of temporary housing. 

• 87 people used the Safer Saturdays service (offering respite from the streets at weekend) with on average 
15 people attending each Saturday until March 2020 when the service had to be suspended as a result of 
the pandemic. 

• Working to a Housing First philosophy, the Housing and Support service supports people to move from 
homelessness to secure and appropriate housing and through tailored supports, helps people maintain 
their homes and work towards fulfilling their goals. Our Housing and Support Services supported 258 
people throughout 2020. 

• Addiction Treatment & Aftercare service supported 62 people. 

• 57 people lived in our four high-support houses in which Cork Simon provides communal accommodation 
and on-site round-the-clock supports. 

• 35 people were newly housed in 2020, moving to secure and affordable, independent and supported 
housing or high-support housing. 100% of people who moved to housing in 2020 remained housed at the 
year end with assistance from our Housing and Support Services. 14 people were rehoused, preventing 
them from returning to homelessness. 

• 141 people engaged with the Education, Training and Employment Project in 2020. 116 were male (82%), 
25 were female (18%). 

• More than 16,000 kind hearted and committed donors donated €6.4 million in support of our work. 

• Volunteers remain at the heart of everything we do. We are thankful for the volunteers who continue to 
help improve the quality and effectiveness of all our services for people who are homeless in Cork. 862 
part-time volunteers and 18 full-time volunteers from 11 different countries gave generously of their time 
and skills during 2020. They worked alongside our highly trained and experienced staff in reaching out to 
and supporting people using our services. Volunteers are involved in every aspect of Cork Simon's work: 
in our emergency shelter; visiting people; getting involved in sports, arts and other activities; helping 
people develop life skills like cooking and literacy; and doing office and administration. Volunteers join with 
the Outreach team in providing the Soup Run. Volunteers organise and participate in a variety of events 
including flag days and collections, and community-based events to help raise funds. The Board of 
directors are all volunteers. 

In 2020, South East Simon conducted a similar range of activities. These are outlined in detail in the separate 
financial statements on that company. They are not repeated here because South East Simon is included in 
the Group financial statements for six weeks in 2020. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Achievements and performance 
During the year, in line with our objectives and priorities: 

• We had a major focus on keeping Cork's vulnerable homeless population safe from COVID-1 9 

• We began work on a new Community Plan (strategy) for the five years from 2020 to 2025. This includes 
the further elaboration of our Housing Led and Trauma Informed approach to addressing homelessness 
and incorporates planning for South East Simon 

• We actively promoted the Housing First / Housing Led approach which is aimed at making sure people 
experiencing homelessness are assisted to live their lives in their own ways through a model that offers 
choices in both housing and support services to facilitate personal empowerment and recovery. 

• We continued to take a Trauma Informed Care approach to service delivery across all Cork Simon 
services. This involves implementing learning from the research and audit of services from a trauma 
informed perspective and training for staff in the principles of trauma informed practice. 

• We increased our housing stock by a further nine apartments, five through direct purchase and four via an 
agreement with another housing body. 

• We commenced renovation work, in line with planning permission, at St Joachim and Anne's building at 
Anglesea Street, Cork, to sensitively convert this listed building into eight independent living apartments for 
people who are long term homeless. 

• As part of the Cold Weather Initiative for Cork City, we again agreed with the Cork City Council to keep the 
Night Light service open throughout the year. While this is a basic service, it provides respite from the 
street and a warm place for people. 

• Our Safer Saturdays programme continued to offer greater empowerment for people using our day 
services at weekends until March 2020 when the service had to be suspended as a result of the pandemic. 

• With funding through the Cork City Council, we continued the Cork Regional Housing First service, in 
partnership with Focus Ireland. The service benefits greatly from the support of the HSE, clinical support 
specialists who work side by side with the Case Management Team in delivering intensive supports to 
clients of the service. 

• Our Campaigning programme we launched the second report of our longitudinal 'A Working Life' research 
series which in partnership with Simon Communities in Ireland we continued to conduct the 'Locked out of 
the Market' studies throughout 2021. These reports highlighted the ongoing gap between Rent 
Supplement/Housing Assistance Payment and raising rents in Cork and nationally, reflecting the 
challenges people using our services face when trying to find an affordable home. Through our ongoing 
programme we raise awareness and recruit the wider public to help communicate the severity of the 
housing and homeless crisis, to politicians, policy makers and influencers, among others. 

• We continued to grow and develop our engagement with social media audiences. 

• With the generosity of our donors, our fundraising team of staff and volunteers raised almost €6 million 
gross in voluntary donations and bequests in 2020 a hugely impressive achievement at a time of 
pandemic. This support is required to deliver and sustain each of our services. 

• We continued the integration with South East Simon Community in the areas of Housing First, homeless 
services, fundraising, accounting, staffing and management supports. All staff providing South East Simon 
Community services are employees of Cork Simon Community and we have worked to implement that 
same policies across the wider team. 

• We are implementing the National Quality Standards Framework standards of service delivery and 
document how this can be evidenced. 

• Our GDPR working group continued to review and improve processes and policies across the 
organisation. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Achievements and performance - continued 

.1 Our Women in Services and a Women in the Workplace working groups continue their work during 2020 
but meetings were suspended for much of the year as a consequence of the COVID-1 9 crisis. 

., We continued to represent the people we support at Local and Regional Homeless fora and continued to 
represent Cork Simon's experience on the ground at a national level at the Simon Communities of Ireland. 

The achievements and performance of South East Simon is outlined in detail in the separate financial 
statements on that company. They are not repeated here because South East Simon is included in the Group 
financial statements for six weeks in 2020. 

Financial review 
The directors' report the following significant financial events during the year: 

•:• The financial results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are shown in the Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Activities on page 20. This includes the results of Cork Simon for the year and the results of 
South East Simon for six weeks from 19 November 2020 to 31 December 2020. 

•• Income from allocations and grants from other agencies accounted for 40% of income for 2020 (2019: 
44%). Fundraising and other income account for 60% of income in 2020 (2019: 56%). 

.. Total income amounted to €11,865,016 (2019: €10,141,864). This includes €944,000 received in 2020 as 
capital donations and restricted to housing capital. Total expenditure was €10,297,735 (2019: 
€1 0,1 96,576). The net movement in funds is reported as an increase of €1,879,140. 

€ 
The end of year consolidated reserves are reported as €7,929,631. These reserves are comprised of: 

Unrestricted funds 2,925,093 
Restricted funds 274,033 
Designated funds 2,730,000 
Restricted building funds 2,000,505 
Total reserves as reported at year end 7,929,631 

Restricted funds include €113,998 of grants restricted for South East Simon. 

COVID-1 9 
During the year, the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic has spread across the globe. It is causing significant 
financial market, economic and social disturbance globally and in Ireland, including significant disruption to 
business and economic activity. The not-for-profit sector has been significantly impacted. Given the nature of 
the event, the ultimate extent of the effect on the Group and Company of the measures taken in Ireland and 
globally to contain the spread of COVID-19 cannot be determined or quantified at present. However, the 
directors have determined that Cork Simon and South East Simon will be able to continue operating in this 
environment, albeit the scale of their operations could be impacted by these external factors. The directors will 
continue to monitor any significant adverse changes to cash flows, any adverse indicators in respect of the 
carrying value of assets and additional liabilities as a result of this pandemic, and take appropriate measures to 
address these matters, as required. 

As the provider of essential services during the COVlD-19 pandemic, we have continued to provide housing 
and support services to people who rely on our services. We have worked closely with the HSE, local 
authorities and other agencies to manage the operational risks of COVID-1 9. We have considered the financial 
impact of COVlD-1 9 and performed various scenario analyses. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

COVID-19 - continued 

The COVID-19 lockdowns, the subsequent social distancing restrictions and pessimistic economic outlook, are 
expected to have a disruptive impact on our income generation for the remainder of 2021 and beyond that 
time-frame, depending on the length of the pandemic. Based on our assessment, we note: 

• Grants income: We have been working with our state funders and keeping them updated on any changes 
to the services they fund. We expect our grant income to remain steady during this period and this is 
reflected in our cash forecasts. 

• Fundraising income: Cork Simon relies on fundraising for raise approximately 50% of the funds required to 
provide the range of services we offer. At the start of this pandemic, we forecasted that our fundraising 
income would fall by up to 31% against previous year income. Many of our planned campaigns, and in 
particular Community, Corporate and Staffing events, have been cancelled or postponed due to the 
Government restrictions. We have engaged in new fundraising initiatives. 

Notwithstanding the challenges created by the pandemic, the Group and Company's income generation have 
proven to be resilient since the start of the crisis in March 2020, as set out in the 'Financial Review' section of 
this report. In spite of this, the high demand for both Communities' services persists and the directors continue 
to monitor risks and uncertainties to their income sources. 

We have considered various measures we could take to avail of new income and to control costs and 
conserve cash within the organisation. We have reduced budgeted overheads including travel and 
maintenance work. We implemented the Government temporary wages subsidy scheme and availed of the 
Government COVID-19 Stability Scheme. We are hopeful that new grant income will cover incremental 
CO VI D-1 9 related costs associated with continuing to provide our services during the pandemic. 

The company has a solid capital structure in place, with uncommitted cash. The company has modelled 
various scenarios to assess the potential impacts of COVID-19 on the company's activities and has considered 
the reductions in income from its budget levels. 

The most significant variable in assessing future income and expense remains the length of time the 
pandemic continues and its long term damage to the Irish economy. Notwithstanding that the Group and 
Company provide essential social services, the Board has also considered the potential mitigating actions that 
the community could take to reduce its cost base and services if income levels were to fall significantly, to 
manage the long-lasting impact on the liquidity of the company. 

The Board is satisfied based on the modelling it has completed that it has adequate liquidity to enable it to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, including a minimum period of twelve months 
from the date of approval of these accounts. 

Reserves and investment strategy 
Cork Simon and South East Simon have a responsibility to ensure that it uses the funds and resources it 
receives for its charitable purpose of ending homelessness. Grants are confirmed on an annual basis and other 
sources of income and resources are not guaranteed. Cork Simon and South East Simon must plan its use of 
these funds and resources to ensure the continuity and sustainability of the services it offers. To this end, Cork 
Simon and South East Simon have a reserves policy in place and currently targets to hold four months of 
operating costs in reserve. 

As is usual for housing bodies, Cork Simon and South East Simon hold a property maintenance and 
development fund, often referred to as the 'sinking fund'. The directors have designated unrestricted funds for the 
future maintenance and development of the community's properties. At the year end this designated fund 
amounts to €2,730,000 in the Group financial statements and €2,430,000 in the Company financial statements. 

Cork Simon and South East Simon have put in place an investment strategy that sets out clearly how it plans to 
make the best use of any available reserve funds in a low risk environment in line with its charitable purposes. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Vision 

Our strategic vison for Cork Simon and South East Simon can be stated in one line: "Achieving Functional 
Zero Homelessness by 2030 in the communities we serve" 

Functional Zero homelessness is achieved when there are enough services, housing and shelter beds for 
everyone who needs it. When "functional zero is achieved, nobody becomes or remains long term homeless. 

Our mission is to play a leading role in providing housing and services aimed at preventing and ending 
homelessness in the South West and South East Regions via 

• Initiatives aimed at the prevention of homelessness and diversion from enmeshment in homeless services 
• Provision of sufficient short term housing-orientated shelter and supports 
• Provision of sufficient housing and support in housing to prevent and end long term homelessness 

Our focus between 2021 and 2025 will be on ensuring that all our services are housing orientated, trauma 
informed, focused on harm reduction and on promoting recovery and greater personal independence. In line 
with this we will expand our shelter provision where necessary and will be moving away from dormitory style 
provision and shared rooms and towards single room occupancy in such services. 

We will be increasing our housing delivery substantially with a particular focus on one bed apartments in line 
with participant needs. We will build our capacity to manage our growing housing stock effectively and 
efficiently. We will evaluate and enhance services provided in High Support Housing. 

We will continue to develop our Housing First and Housing Led support services for people leaving 
homelessness, as well as our range of specialist support services relating to addiction, social integration and 
education, training and employment. 

We will proactively engage in partnerships, networks and campaigns aimed at maximizing our influence and 
impact on ending homelessness in our regional areas. We will also work to ensure that our organisational 
structure, infrastructure, culture and communications are enhanced to support organisational growth and 
effectiveness and to build resilience in challenging times. 

Plans for future periods 

Cork Simon's main priorities in 2021 are: 

• Complete our Community Plan for the period 2021-2025. 

• Continue to align all Cork Simon services with a Trauma Informed Care approach. 

• Facilitate faster onward progression for people out of homelessness, in line with Housing Led principles. 

. Move towards ending our reliance on large scale institutional emergency accommodation. Increase the 
number of scatter site flats and inclusive housing projects. 

• Secure additional housing units through a range of sources, including properties owned by Cork Simon, 
as housing options for people in emergency and temporary accommodation or sleeping rough in Cork. 

• Continue to deliver housing and intense support services to people who are long term homeless under the 
Cork Region Housing First service. 

• Complete the development of B self-contained units on the St Joachim and Anne site on Anglesea Street, 
Cork. 

• Continue to support people who are sleeping rough to reduce harms associated with life on the streets. 

• Secure funding for several services which Cork Simon has successfully piloted and which have been 
financed by fundraised income, including our coordinated education, training and employment service, 
our activities programme and our aftercare service. 

• Enhance specialist services including services for young people, women, people with drug & alcohol 
addictions and people with mental health issues. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Plans for future periods - continued 

•s Improve the situation of people who are currently homeless through Cork Simon acting as a leading 
advocate for the right to housing and supports for all at a national and local level. 

. Continue to maintain and develop Cork Simon's broad support base and promote a general 
understanding of the causes of and solutions to homelessness. 

• Continue to implement the proposed actions from the independent review of Cork Simon management. 
board and governance structures. 

• Continue to implement the 8 themes of the National Quality Standards Framework across all services. 

. Complete the process of operational integration with South East Simon Community. 

• Demonstrate how we comply with the new Charities Regulator Governance Code. 

• Demonstrate how we comply with the Governance and Performance Standards that are due to issue from 
the Approved Housing Bodies Regulatory Authority. 

South East Simon Community's main priorities in 2021 are: 
• Complete a strategic plan for the period 2020-2025 jointly with Cork Simon community. 

• Align all South East Simon Community services with a Housing Led approach. 

• Facilitate faster onward progression for people out of homelessness. 

• Carry out a review of South East Simon Community governance and management structures and 
arrangements. 

• Elaborate a model of key working and case management in line with new standards for homeless 
services, to better support people on their journey out of homelessness. 

• Offer an expanded range of housing options to people with high-support needs. 

• Identify and access an increased number of housing units suitable for the needs of people we support and 
through various sources. 

• Secure sustainable funding to support ongoing services. 

• Improve the situation of people who are currently homeless through South East Simon Community acting 
as a leading advocate for the right to housing and supports for all at a national and local level. 

• Continue to maintain and develop South East Simon Community support base and promote a general 
understanding of the causes of and solutions to homelessness. 

• Implement the National Quality Standards Framework across our services. 

• To continue the integration with Cork Simon Community in the areas of housing and homeless services, 
fundraising, accounting, staffing and management supports. 

•• Complete the transfer to South East Simon of six properties in Clonmel which are currently owned by 
Simon Communities of Ireland. South East Simon is providing housing and support services at these 
properties. 

Relationships with other bodies 
Cork Simon and South East Simon recognise that the range of needs of people who are homeless are too 
complex for one organisation to solve. Both entities foster relationships and working arrangements with a 
variety of other agencies and providers of related services. 

• Cork Simon Community and South East Simon are part of a network of eight independent Simon 
Communities operating in the Republic of Ireland, the others being in Dundalk, Dublin, Midlands, Galway, 
North West and Mid-West. All eight Simon Communities share common values and ethos in tackling all 
forms of homelessness throughout Ireland and work collectively through a National Office to conduct 
valuable research and to inform and influence national policy. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Relationships with other bodies - continued 

Cork Simon and South East Simon are each an Approved Housing Body and a member of the Irish 
Council for Social Housing. 

• Cork Simon Community has close links with other agencies in Cork providing services for people who are 
homeless. As part of the Cork Social Housing Forum, Cork Homeless Forum and the Cork Youth 
Homeless Forum we seek to achieve a co-ordinated approach to homelessness in Cork. Similarly, South 
East Simon Community has close links with other agencies in providing services for people who are 
homeless. We are members of the Waterford Homeless Service Providers Network and of the South East 
Regional Homeless Forum. 

• Cork Simon is the lead agency for the Cork Region Housing First service and has a close partnership with 
Focus Ireland, the HSE and Cork City Council in the delivery of this service. 

• The Southwest Joint Regional Homelessness Consultative Forum is a key policy link between the delivery 
of homeless services in the South West and national policy. The Forum is responsible for the Cork & Kerry 
region. 

Cork Simon Community has good working relationships with the Health Service Executive, Cork City and 
County Councils, Department of Social Protection, Cork Local Drugs Task Force, Cork Education and 
Training Board and the Community Gardal. We work with private landlords, voluntary housing bodies and 
a range of Community groups including Cork City Partnership and Cork Equal and Sustainable 
Communities Alliance (CESCA). Similarly, South East Simon Community has good working relationships 
with the Health Service Executive, Waterford City and County Council, Tipperary County Council, 
Department of Employment Affairs and Social Protection, and the Community GardaI. We work with 
private landlords, voluntary housing bodies and a range of Community groups. 

• Cork Simon Community and South East Simon have forged connections and networks with the Cork and 
South East business communities respectively. 

• Cork Simon is a founding member of the Cork Homeless Network which brings together all the voluntary 
agencies in Cork providing services for people who are homeless. 

• Cork Simon provides operational and management supports to South East Simon Community. 

Structure, governance and management 
Cork Simon Community is a company limited by guarantee (CLG). Cork Simon Community has a Constitution. 
A Board of Directors is elected from among the membership of the company. The directors are volunteers. 
The membership is open to any person who has recently participated in the Community, as a service user or a 
volunteer, and who subscribes to the values of Cork Simon. 

On 19 November 2020, Cork Simon acquired control of South East Simon Community when the constitution 
was amended to include that Cork Simon is entitled to appoint the majority of board members to South East 
Simon. South East Simon Community is a charitable company limited by guarantee (CLG). South East 
Simon Community has a Constitution. The members of the board of directors are the members of the 
company. The directors are volunteers. South East Simon has the same objects as Cork Simon. It provides 
services in Waterford, South Tipperary and Kilkenny. The Board members of South East Simon are currently 
all board members of Cork Simon. 

Cork Simon and South East Simon comply with the Charities Governance Code and regularly carry out 
reviews, including externally facilitated reviews of the Board and governance structures and management 
structures. In 2020 the Board, along with Cork Simon Community, carried out an externally facilitated review of 
the Board and governance structures and management structures of South East Simon. 

Both entities have signed up to the Voluntary Regulation Code for Approved Housing Bodies. Cork Simon 
adheres to the Statement of Guiding Principles for Fundraising. In service delivery Cork Simon applies the 
National Quality Standards Framework, and the Quality Standards in Alcohol and Drugs Services. Similarly, in 
service delivery South East Simon applies the Putting People First Code, the National Quality Standards 
Framework, and the Quality Standards in Alcohol and Drugs Services. Both entities reach the 'triple lock' 
standard as set out by the Charities Institute of Ireland. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS REPORT - continued 

Structure, governance and management - continued 

Cork Simon Community and South East Simon are committed to openness and transparency both within the 
organisation and externally with donors, funders, supporters and the public. More information about this is 
available on our website http:/Iwww.corksimon.ie/how-we-are-run/. 

The board of directors is responsible for governance and for developing and approving policies and strategies 
of the Community. The day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the management team who are 
responsible for the implementation of these policies and strategies, as approved by the board of directors, and 
for managing the operation and delivery of services in line with Cork Simon Community and Simon South East 
values. The day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the Director, Dermot Kavanagh, supported 
by his management team. Dermot is not a member of the Board of Directors. 

The Board has established a Finance, Audit and Remuneration committee, a Quality and Safety committee, a 
Property Development committee, and an Investment Advisory committee. These meet during the year and 
report to the Board. 

Principal risks and uncertainties 
The directors have ultimate responsibility for managing risk and are aware of the risks associated with the 
operating activities of Cork Simon and Simon South East. The directors carry out regular risk audits and 
review the risks on a quarterly basis. The directors are satisfied that adequate systems of governance, 
supervision, procedures and internal controls are in place to mitigate the exposure to the major risks and that 
these controls provide reasonable assurance against such risks. The major risks include risks arising from the 
COVID-1 9 pandemic, financial risks, operational & safety risks, compliance risks and reputational risks. 

COVID-19 pandemic risk 
The COVlD-19 coronavirus pandemic is impacting Cork Simon's and Simon South East's fund-raising, 
operations, employees & volunteers and on our service participants in the short term. Its impact on the not-
for-profit sector has been significant. It is very likely to have lasting effects on the Irish economy, which will 
impact both the both Community's income streams and demand for its services. The directors continue to 
manage the impact of this crisis, but the duration and final impact is still uncertain. 

Financial risk 
Reduced or insufficient income will impact directly on services and the people who avail of them. Changes to 
government policy and economic climate can impact on fundraised income and on grants from statutory 
agencies. Measures to reduce this risk include an investment in a fundraising strategy which includes a mix of 
income streams, positive negotiation with key stakeholders and funders, and the management and control of 
budgets and costs. Financial information is subject to detailed review at board of director level allowing for 
continuous monitoring of the both Community's operations and financial status. 

Operational and safety risks 
Cork Simon's and Simon South East's services are aimed at people who are vulnerable and socially isolated. 
Poor quality services can have a detrimental impact on people. Both entities are committed to providing high 
quality services. We adhere to recognised quality standards, operate a training programme for staff and 
volunteers, and work to a range of operational and staff performance policies and procedures aimed at 
providing consistently safe living, working and volunteering environments. 

Compliance risk 
Cork Simon and Simon South East have to comply with a range of legislation and regulation. Non-compliance 
could incur penalty and result in reputational damage. Both entities signed up to the various governance codes 
relating to the voluntary sector and the approved housing bodies. The policies and procedures and internal 
control systems that are in place aim to ensure compliance with laws and policies, and to ensure efficient and 
effective use of the both Community's resources. 

Reputational risk 
Cork Simon and Simon South East are delivering services on behalf of the wider community and relies on the 
support of that wider community. Damage to their reputation would impact on that support. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Principal risks and uncertainties - continued 

Demand for services 
External risks include the impact of the recent and ongoing housing crisis. An increase to the number of 
people needing homeless services, or an inability of Cork Simon to access a range of housing options for 
people, or a change in government policy or de-prioritisation of homelessness can all impact on the services 
Cork Simon and Simon South East can offer. Both Cork Simon and Simon South East campaign and consult 
with key stakeholders to influence and mitigate the impact of these risks. 

Information security 
Cyber security is an increasing risk and phishing attempts continue to increase. There is a risk of reputational 
damage and/or fines from the Data Protection Commissioner in the event of data breaches. We are investing 
in our IT systems to minimise the threat from cyber-attacks. 

Directors 
The names of the persons who are currently or were directors at any time during the year ended 31 December 
2020 are set out below. Unless indicated otherwise, they served as directors for the entire year. 

Ernest Cantillon John J. Murphy (retired 17 May 2021) 
Ann FitzGerald Sean Ormonde 
Eoin MacCuirc (chair) Anthony O'Donovan 
Peter O'Meara James O'Shaughnessy 
Brendan Ryan Mary Ryan 
Leslie Warren 
Katherine Harford 
James Leonard (appointed 23 March 2020, retired 21 August 2020) 
Deirdre O'Shaughnessy (appointed 15 February 2021) 

Brendan Ryan was company secretary during 2020. 

All board members are volunteers with Cork Simon. No board member received any remuneration. There were 
no contracts of any significance in relation to the business of the Community in which the directors had any 
interest, as defined in the Companies Act 2014, at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020. 

Directors' and secretary's interests 
No board member holds a beneficial interest in the charity. 

The company is a company limited by guarantee, not having a share capital. The liability of the members is 
limited to €1.00 each, that they have guaranteed to contribute to the assets of the company on winding up of 
the company. 

Going concern 
The Group and Company meets their day-to-day working capital requirements through its cash reserves, 
grant income, fund-raising income, rental income and return on investments. The current economic conditions 
caused by COVID-19 continue to create uncertainty over: the ability of the Group and Company to maintain 
the same level of fund-raised income we have achieved in previous years; risks to grant income streams in 
the future, which are presently unknown; and how the economic impact of the crisis might impact on future 
demands for our services. The directors have considered the impact of measures to prevent the spread of the 
pandemic being implemented by the Irish government and the Group & Company. 

The Board have assessed the impact of the outbreak on its financial and operating outlook, and considered 
this on its cash flows, along with appropriate mitigations. The directors expect that the Group and Company 
will be in a position to meet their obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future. In arriving at its 
conclusion, the board has taken account of the level of cash resources which the company maintains to 
enable it to meet its working capital requirements. It holds no external bank debt. The Capital Assistance 
Scheme mortgages on properties are set in such a way that the Group/Company is relieved of repayments, as 
set out in note 14. 

After making all necessary enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and 
Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Therefore 
these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Accounting records 
The measures taken by the directors to secure compliance with the company's obligation to keep adequate 
accounting records are the use of appropriate systems and procedures and employment of competent 
persons. The accounting records are kept at 14 Cove Street, Cork. 

Statement of directors' responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report andY the group and company financial 
statements in accordance With Irish law. 

Irish law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year giving a true and fair 
view of the Group's and company's assets, liabilities and financial position at the end of the financial year and 
the profit or loss of the Group for the financial year. The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Financial Reporting 

he

 

102 (FRS 102) and Irish statute comprising Companies Act 
2014 as applied in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) (FRS 102) 'Accounting 
Reporting by Charities' as jointly published by the Charity Commission for England and Wales and the office 
of the Scottish Charity Regulator, who are recognised by the UK Accounting Standards Board (ASB) as the 
appropriate body to issue SORPs for the charity sector in the UK. Financial reporting in line with the SORP is 
considered best practice for charities in Ireland. As noted above, the directors consider the adoption of the 
SORP requirements is the most appropriate practice and presentation to properly reflect and disclose the 
activities of the Group and Company. 

Under Irish law, the directors shall not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give 
a true and fair view of the Group and Company's assets, liabilities and financial position as at the end of the 
financial year and the profit or loss of the Group and Company for the financial year. 

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting 

standards and identify the standards in question, subject to any material departures from those 
standards being disclosed and explained in the notes to the financial statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 
the Group and Company will continue in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to: 
• correctly record and explain the transactions of the Group and Company; 

enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group and 
Company to be determined with reasonable accuracy; and 

e enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2014 and 
enable those financial statements to be audited. 

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company, hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the company's website. Legislation in Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of 
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Political donations 
It is Cork Simon policy not to make political donations. The Electoral (Amendment) (Political Funding) Act, 
2012, requires companies to disclose all political donations to any individual party over €200 in value made 
during the financial year. The directors confirm no political donations have been made by the Company. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued 

Disclosure of information to auditors 
The directors in office at the date of this report have confirmed that: 

as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's statutory auditors 
were unaware; and 

• they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves 
aware of any relevant information and to establish that the company's statutory auditors are aware of that 
information. 

Events since the end of the year 
There have been no significant events affecting the Community since the year-end. 

Statutory auditors 
The statutory auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have indicated their willingness to continue in office, and a 
resolution that they be re-appointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting. 

By order of the board 

Eoin MacCuirc 

James O'Shaughnessy 
DA L ', 

16 August 2021 
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Independent auditors' report to the members of Cork Simon 
Community 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

In our opinion, Cork Simon Community's group financial statements and company financial statements (the 
"financial statements"): 

• give a true and fair view of the group's and the company's assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 
December 2020 and of the group's net income and the group's and the company's cash flows for the year 
then ended; - 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (Irish 
GAAP) (accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial 
Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" 
and Irish law); and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014. 

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: 

• the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2020; 

• the consolidated statement of financial activities for the year then ended; 

• the consolidated and company cash flow statements for the year then ended; and 

• the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) ("ISAs (Ireland)") and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors, responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of our report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements in Ireland which includes IAASAs Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's or the company's ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 

- 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the 
group's or the company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 

Reporting on other information 

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and 
our auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or 
material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the 
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report based on these responsibilities. 

With respect to the Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act 2014 
have been included. 

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (Ireland) and the 
Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described below: 

• In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors' 
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in 
accordance with the applicable legal requirements. 

• Based on our knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the 
course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors' Report. 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial'stztements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities set out on page 15, the directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view. 

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial  statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data 
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing 
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In 
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is 
selected. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA website at: 

of auditors responsibilities 
for auclitpjf 

This description forms part of our auditors' report. 

Use of this report 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance 
with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or 
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it 
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 
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Other required reporting 
Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters 

• We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our 
audit. 

• In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the company financial 
statements to be readily and properly audited. 

The Company Balance Sheet is in agreement with the accounting records. 

Other exception reporting 

Directors' remuneration and transactions 

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors' 
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no 
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Declan Maunsell 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhoüseCoopers 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm 
Cork 
25 August 2021 
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CORK SIMON COMMUNITY 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

      

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 

       

Restricted Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total Total 
Notes funds funds building fund building fund 2020 2019 

 

€ € € € € € 
Income from: 

      

Donations 311,052 4,851,160 - 944,000 6,106,212 4,381,008 
Legacies - 291,601 - - 291,601 206,574 
Other fundraising activities - 28,560 - - 28,560 207,268 
Charitable activities 4,637,385 571,940 - 

 

5,209,325 5,243,743 
Interest and investment income - 358 .- - 358 2,376 
Other income - - - - - 2,356 
Income from South East Simon 228,960 - - - 228,960 98,539 

Total income iS 5,177,397 5,743,619 - 944,000 11,865,016 10,141,864 

Expenditure on: 

      

Charitable activities (6,530,755) (2,452,918) - - (8,983,673) (8,655,808) 
Raising funds - (1,085,102) - - (1,085,102) (1,248,798) 
Expenditure for South East Simon (228,960) - - - (228,960) (291,970) 

Total expenditure 5/15 (6,759,715) (3,538,020) - - (10,297,735) (10,196,576) 

Net (loss)/gain on investments - (49,573) - - (49,573) 96,460 
Capital Assistance Scheme repayments relieved 14 - 361,432 - - 361,432 275,328 

Net income/(expense) 7 (1,582,318) 2,517,458 - 944,000 1,879,140 317,076 

Merger of Simon South East 22 79,240 6,458 20,000 21,759 127,457 -. 

Transfer from restricted building fund 15 - 54,664 - (54,664) - - 

Transfer from unrestricted fund 15 1,625,512 (1,905,512) 280,000 - - - 

Net movement in funds 122,434 673,068 300,000 911,095 2,006,597 317,076 

Reconciliation of funds 

      

Total funds brought forward 151,599 2,252,025 2,430,000 1,089,410 5,923,034 5,605,958 

Total funds carried forward 274,033 2,925,093 2,730,000 2,000,505 7,929,631 5,923,034 

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. There are no other items to be included in a statement of 
comprehensive income. Income and net income/(expense) arose solely from continuing activities. Movements in funds are set out in note 15 on page 39. Please 
refer to note ,-6 on page 32 where the detailed comparative Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 is 
disclosed. 

            

20 



Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 December 2020 

 

Notes 2020 2019 

  

€ € 
Fixed assets 

   

Tangible assets 9 12,132,042 7,518,577 
Investments 10 1,205,435 1,255,008 

  

13,337,477 8,773,585 

Current assets 

   

Stock 11 4,936 6,436 
Debtors 12 366,576 540,686 
Cash at bank 

 

6,179,663 3,164,060 

  

6,551,175 3,711,182 

Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year 13 (2,089,321) (1,319,068) 

Net current assets 

 

4,461,854 2,392,114 

 

Total assets less current liabilities 

 

17,799,331 11,165,699 

Creditors - Amounts falling due after more than one year 14 (9,869,700) (5,242,665) 

  

7,929,631 5,923,034 

Total funds of the charity 

   

Unrestricted funds 15 2,925,093 2,252,025 
Restricted funds 15 274,033 151,599 
Designated building fund 15 2,730,000 2,430,000 
Restricted building funds 15 2,000,505 1,089,410 

Total charity funds 15 7,929,631 5,923,034 

The notes on pages 25 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements on pages 20 to 46 were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 August 
2021 and signed on its behalf: 

On behalf of the board 

Eoin MacCuirc 

James 0 Shaughnessy D/~,,-C? 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 December 2020 

 

Notes 2020 2019 

  

€ € 
Fixed assets 

   

Tangible assets 9 9,034,680 7,518,577 
Investments 10 1,205,435 1,255,008 
Investment in South East Simon 22 300,000 

4 fN CA1 44 

- 

Current assets 
Stock 11 4,936 6,436 
Debtors 12 741,832 540,686 
Cash at bank 5,486,784 3,164,060 

 

6,233,552 3,711,182 

Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year 13 (1,903,124) (1,319,068) 

Net current assets 4,330,428 2,392,114 

 

Total assets less current liabilities 14,870,543 11,165,699 

Creditors - Amounts falling due after more than one year 14 (7,129,500) (5,242,665) 

7,741,043 5,923,034 

Total funds of the charity 

  

Unrestricted funds 15 3,172,103 2,252,025 
Restricted funds 15 160,035 151,599 
Designated building fund 15 2,430,000 2,430,000 
Restricted building funds 15 1,978,905 1,089,410 

Total charity funds 15 7,741,043 5,923,034 

The notes on pages 25 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements on pages 20 to 46 were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 
August 2021 and signed on its behalf: 

On behalf of the b d 

Eoin MacCuirc &\,, 

James O'Shaughnessy 'DAL 
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CORK SIMON COMMUNITY 

  

(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

    

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 

   

Notes 2020 2019 

 

€ € 

Net cash provided by charitable activities 17 2,459807 313,583 

Cash flows from investing activities 

  

- investment income 358 2,376 
- payments to acquire tangible assets (2,112,012) (1,815,548) 

Net cash used in investing activities (2,111,654) (1,813,172) 

 

Acquisitions 

  

- Cash acquired 22 358,784 - 

Cash flows from financing activities 

  

- proceeds from capital assistance scheme 2,307,571 863,181 

Net cash generated from financing activities 2,307,571 863,181 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 17 3,014,508 (636,408) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 3,164,060 3,800,468 
Change in cash and cash equivalents 3,014,508 (636,408) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 6,178,568 3,164,060 
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CORK SIMON COMMUNITY 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 

Net cash provided by charitable activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
- capital contribution given 
- investment income 
- payments to acquire tangible assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
- proceeds from capital assistance scheme 

Net cash generated from financing activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 
Change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 

Notes 2020 2019 
€ € 

17 2,426,506 313,583 

22 (300,000) - 

358 2,376 
(2,111,709) (1,815,548) 

(2,411,351) (1,813,172) 

2,307,569 863,181 

2,307,569 863
,
181 

17 2,322,724 (636,408) 

3,164,060 3,800,468 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. General information 
Cork Simon Community is a charitable organisation established to alleviate homelessness and the 
problems associated with homelessness. The registered number of the company is 42511. The 
registered number of the charity is 20022914. 

Cork Simon Community is a company limited by guarantee in the Republic of Ireland. The address of its 
registered office is 14 Cove Street, Cork. 

These financial statements are the company's financial statements for the financial year beginning 
1 January 2020 and ending 31 December 2020. 

The company is a company limited by guarantee. The liability of the members is limited to €1.00 each, 
that they have guaranteed to contribute to the assets of the company on winding up of the company. 

These financial statements are consolidated accounts. On 19 November 2020, Cork Simon acquired 
control of South East Simon (see note 22). This has been accounted for as using merger accounting in 
the Group financial statements. South East Simon is a company limited by guarantee in the Republic of 
Ireland. The address of its registered office is 1 OA Waterside, Waterford. Its reporting date is 31 
December 2020. The comparative amounts in the Group and Company financial statements relate to Cork 
Simon Community. 

2 Statement of compliance 
Irish law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year giving a true and fair 
view of the Group's and company's assets, liabilities and financial position at the end of the financial year 
and the profit or loss of the Group for the financial year. The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) and Irish statute comprising Companies Act 
2014 as applied in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SOAP) (FRS 102) 
Accounting Reporting by Charities' as jointly published by the Charity Commission for England and Wales 
and the office of the Scottish Charity Regulator, who are recognised by the UK Accounting Standards 
Board (ASB) as the appropriate body to issue SOAPs for the charity sector in the UK. Financial reporting 
in line with the SOAP is considered best practice for charities in Ireland. As noted above, the directors 
consider the adoption of the SOAP requirements is the most appropriate practice and presentation to 
properly reflect and disclose the activities of the Group and Company. 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the entity financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all financial years presented, unless otherwise 
stated. 

(a) Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 
102) and Irish statute comprising Companies Act 2014 as applied in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP) (FRS 102) 'Accounting Reporting by Charities' as jointly published by the 
Charity Commission for England and Wales and the office of the Scottish Charity Regulator, who are 
recognised by the UK Accounting Standards Board (ASB) as the appropriate body to issue SORPs for 
the charity sector in the UK. Financial reporting in line with the SOAP is considered best practice for 
charities in Ireland. As noted above, the directors consider the adoption of the SORP requirements is the 
most appropriate practice and presentation to properly reflect and disclose the activities of the Group and 
Company. In the prior year, the financial statements have also been prepared in line with some but not all 
provisions of the Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain key 
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the 
financial year. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the 
company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or areas where 
assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed in note 4. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies - continued 

(a) Basis of preparation - continued 
Cork Simon Community and South East Simon both meet the definition of a public benefit entity under 
FRS 102. Assets and liabilities are initially recognised at historical cost or transaction value, unless 
otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy note. 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the holding company and its 
subsidiary undertaking. The attributable results of acquisitions are included in the financial statements from 
the date of acquisition. Similarly, the attributable results of disposals are included in the financial statements 
to the date of disposal. 

(b)Basis of consolidation 
The Group consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiary undertaking. 

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. 

Where accounting policies followed by subsidiary undertakings differ significantly from those adopted for the 
Group's financial statements, appropriate adjustments are made to ensure a consistent basis of accounting. 

Any subsidiary undertakings sold or acquired during the year are included up to, or from, the dates of 
change of control or change of significant influence respectively. 

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. 

(c) Merger accounting method 
The company has used the merger accounting method to account for the acquisition of South East Simon. 
The carrying amounts of the acquired entity's assets and liabilities are not adjusted to fair value, although 
appropriate adjustments are made to achieve uniformity of accounting policies in the combining entities. No 
new goodwill arises under merger accounting, and the acquired entity's assets and liabilities are brought in 
at the amounts at which the entity recorded them in its books before the combination (subject to adjustment 
for uniform accounting policies). 

Since the pre-transaction income of the acquired business are not income of the acquiring entity (and 
consequently cannot be realised profits), they are included in the acquiring entity's profit and loss account. 
Additionally, the entities started to be managed on a consistent basis from the date that the acquiring entity 
obtained control of the acquired entity. For these reasons, in the group financial statements, the acquiring 
entity uses the merger accounting method on a prospective basis only from the date of transfer, rather than 
reflecting it from the beginning of the financial year and for comparative periods. 

(d) Going concern 
The Group and Company meets their day-to-day working capital requirements through its cash reserves, 
grant income, fund-raising income, rental income and return on investments. The current economic 
conditions caused by COVlD-19 continue to create uncertainty over: the ability of the Group and 
Company to maintain the same level of fund-raised income we have achieved in previous years; risks to 
grant income streams in the future, which are presently unknown; and how the economic impact of the 
crisis might impact on future demands for our services. The directors have considered the impact of 
measures to prevent the spread of the pandemic being implemented by the Irish government and the 
Group & Company. 

The Board have assessed the impact of the outbreak on its financial and operating outlook, and 
considered this on its cash flows, along with appropriate mitigations. The directors expect that the Group 
and Company will be in a position to meet their obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future. In 
arriving at its conclusion, the board has taken account of the level of cash resources which the company 
maintains to enable it to meet its working capital requirements. It holds no external bank debt. The Capital 
Assistance Scheme mortgages on properties are set in such a way that the Group/Company is relieved of 
repayments, as set out in note 14. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies - continued 

(d) Going concern - continued 
After making all necessary enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and 
Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
Therefore these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

(e) Revenue 
(I) Donations and other fundraising activities 
In common with many similar charitable organisations, the company derives a proportion of its income 
from voluntary donations and fund raising activities held by individuals or parties outside the control of the 
company. Accordingly, donations are recognised when the Group/Company has entitlement to the 
income, certainty of receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability. In the case of 
voluntary income receivable by way of donations and gifts, income is recognised when the donation is 
entered into the Group/Company's bank accounts or entered into the Group/Company's accounting 
records. Fund-raising income is shown gross without deduction of any overhead costs involved in raising 
such funds. 

(ii) Legacies 
Income arising from a legacy is recognised when there is a grant of probate, when the amount can be 
measured reliably and when conditions attached are within the control of Group/Company. Often this is 
when the bequest has entered the Group/Company's bank account or title deeds of the related properties 
have transferred to the Group/Company. Where material, legacies that are not recognised as income will 
be disclosed as contingent assets. Income is recognised for legacies once. 

(iii) Revenue grants 
Revenue grants relating to charitable activities are recognised when receivable and are reflected in the 
Statement of Financial Activities on this basis. 

(iv) Capital grants and donations 
Grants and donations receivable in connection with capital expenditure are recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities and included in the Restricted Building Fund when 
receivable. On an annual basis, a transfer is made from the Restricted Building Fund to the Unrestricted 
Funds on the same basis as the related tangible assets are depreciated. 

(f) Other revenue 
The Group/Company also earn interest income. Interest on funds held on deposit is included when 
receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the Group/Company; this is normally upon 
notification of the interest paid or payable by the bank. 

(g) Deferred income 
Grants relating to expenditure to be incurred in a future accounting period received in advance are 
deferred and recognised in the period to which they relate. Deferred income is released to income in the 
period in which the related performance occurs. 

(h) Capital assistance scheme loans 
Loans under Capital Assistance Schemes, receivable from local authorities for the purposes of acquiring 
and developing specified housing properties and advanced to the Community under the terms of a 
mortgage agreement, are recognised in the financial statements as creditors repayable over fixed terms of 
30 years. Under the terms of the mortgage agreement the Group/Company is relieved of monthly capital 
and interest repayments by the relevant local authority provided the Group/Company is in compliance with 
certain specific conditions. The repayments so relieved are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Activities as they are waived or relieved. If the company fails to comply with the specific condition, the 
unrelieved balance becomes repayable. 

The amounts repayable to the local authorities under the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme, 
representing advances received as reduced by repayments relieved, are disclosed as creditors classified 
as 'amounts repayable within one year' and 'amounts repayable after more than one year'. 

This loan is accounted for as Public Benefit Entity Concessionary Loans under Chapter 34 of FRS 102 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued 

(i) Restricted and unrestricted funds 
The Group/Company operate the following funds: 

(i) Restricted funds 
Restricted income funds are to be used for specific purposes as laid down by the donor or grantor. 
Expenditure which meets these criteria is shown as charged to the fund. These funds may become 

• repayable in the event that the conditions laid down by the donor or grantor are not adhered to. 

(ii) Unrestricted funds 
Unrestricted income funds are donations and other incoming resources received or generated for 
charitable purposes which can be used at the discretion of the Group/Company in furtherance of the 
objects of the Charity. 

(iii) Restricted building funds 
Restricted building funds are to be used for specific capital purposes as laid down by the donor or grantor. 
The funds that have been spent on housing assets are amortised over the same period as the related 
asset is depreciated. The funds that have not been spent may be repayable in the event that the 
conditions laid down by the donor or grantor are not adhered to. 

(iv) Designated funds 
The Group/Company aims to maintain its housing properties in good condition and repair. The 
designated fund represents unrestricted funds allocated for the future maintenance and development of 
the Community's housing properties. This is often referred to as the Sinking Fund. 

(j) Expenditure 
Expenditure accounted for when they are incurred and include amounts due at the end of the year but not 
paid. Expenditure expended include attributable Value Added Tax which cannot be recovered. 
Expenditure expended are allocated to the particular activity or service where the cost relates directly to 
that activity or service. The costs of supporting activities, training, volunteers and overall direction are 
reallocated to each activity or project based mainly on staff and volunteer numbers and utilisation. 

Expenditure on raising funds includes the staff time directly spent on raising funds, the cost of producing 
and disseminating literature, and the delivery of fundraising events. The cost of generating funds also 
include the costs incurred in fundraising and encouraging third parties to make voluntary contributions 
now and in the future towards the provision of services by the Community. The costs are expensed when 
they are incurred, although the benefit in terms of funds raised may occur in a future period. 

(k) Tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes the original purchase price, costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for its intended use, applicable dismantling, removal and restoration 
costs and borrowing costs capitalised. Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost. These 
assets are not depreciated until they are available for use. 

(I) Depreciation and residual values 
Depreciation is calculated, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Freehold property 25 years 
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 3 to 5 years 
Motor vehicles 5 years 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each 
financial year. The effect of any change in either residual values or useful lives is accounted for 
prospectively. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies - continued 

(k) Tangible fixed assets - continued 

(ii) Repairs and maintenance 
Repairs, maintenance and minor inspection costs are expensed as incurred. 

(iii) De-recognition 
Tangible assets are de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefit is expected. On 
disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Activities. 

(I) Financial instruments 
The company has chosen to apply the provisions of Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 to account for all of 
its financial instruments. 

(i) Financial assets 
Basic financial assets, including sundry debtors, cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits and 
investments in corporate bonds, are initially recognised at transaction price (including transaction costs), 
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. There were no financial asset arrangements 
that constituted a financing arrangement. 

Other financial assets are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. 

Realised gains and losses on disposal of investments are the difference between sales proceeds 
receivable and carrying value. Unrealised gains and losses are the difference between market value at 
year end and carrying value. 

Financial assets are de-recognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire 
or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred to another party, or (c) control of the financial asset has been transferred to another party who 
has the practical liability to unilaterally sell the financial asset to an unrelated third party without imposing 
additional restrictions. 

(ii) Financial liabilities 
Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other creditors, are initially recognised at transaction price, 
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. Where the arrangement constitutes a 
financing transaction the resulting financial liability is initially measured at the present value of the future 
payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 

(m)Allocation of support costs 
Support costs are those functions that assist the delivery of the charitable activities. Support costs include 
back-office costs, finance, human resources, payroll and governance costs which support the charity's 
programmes and activities. These costs have been allocated between cost of raising funds and 
expenditure on charitable activities. The basis on which support costs have been allocated are set out in 
note 5. 

(n) Employee benefits 
(i) Defined contribution plan 
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The company's contributions to this 
scheme are dealt with in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis. 

(ii) Short term benefits 
Short term employees' benefits, including paid holiday arrangements and other similar non-monetary 
benefits, are recognised as an expense in the financial year in which employees render the related 
service. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies - continued 

(o) Donated goods, facilities and services, including volunteers 
Goods and services donated to Cork Simon Community include items used in the delivery of services and 
items passed on to people using Cork Simon services. Where it is practical to record and measure 
reliably the value of these donated goods, the value of the goods is included in income and in related 
expenditure. Donated goods that are in store at the year end and that are expected to be used after the 
year end, are included in stock, where it is possible to measure reliably the value of these items. 

In accordance with the Charities SOAP (FRS 102), general volunteer time is not recognised in the 
financial statements. 

Please refer to the review of activities in 2020 section within directors' report for more information about 
the volunteers' contribution to the Community. 

4 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty 

Estimates and judgements made in the process of preparing the entity financial statements are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The directors make estimates and assumptions concerning the future in the process of preparing the 
entity financial statements. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related 
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed 
below. 

Useful economic lives of tangible fixed assets 
The annual depreciation on tangible fixed assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic 
lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed 
annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological 
advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 
10 for the carrying amount of the tangible fixed assets and note 3 for the useful economic lives for each 
class of tangible fixed assets. 

Recognition of bequests 
When the Group/Company is made aware of a potential bequest, estimates and assumptions are made 
concerning the probable timing of any income and eventual value of the bequest income, in assessing 
when that income should be recognised. 

Performance related income 
When recognising income judgements are occasionally required to ascertain whether the grant or 
donation is performance or non-performance based. All judgements made are in relation to individual 
grants or donations. 



Cork Simon Community 

 

(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

 

5 Resources expended Staff Direct Depreciation Support Total 
costs costs costs 2020 

€ € € € € 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

 

Homeless. services 5,736,046 1,197,729 561,092 857,032 8,351,899 
Campaigns and research 204,097 511,063 - 30,547 745,707 

Charitable activities 5,940,143 1,708,792 561,092 887,579 9,097,606 

Raising funds 374,612 700,222 10,268 1,085,102 
Costs incurred on behalf of South East Simon 223,071 5,889 - - 228,960 
Training, volunteering and other support 703,012 140,290 54,545 (897,847) - 

Temporary wage subsidy scheme (113,933) - - - (113,933) 

Total 2020 7,126,905 2,555,193 615,637 - 10,297,735 

For the year ended 31 December 2019 

 

Homeless services 5,206,644 1,403,801 499,811 801,407 7,911 ,663 
Campaigns and research 230,259 489,973 - 23,913 744,145 

Charitable activities 5,436,903 1,893,774 499,811 825,320 8,655,808 

Raising funds 419,832 817,010 11,956 1,248,798 
Costs incurred on behalf of South East Simon 271,104 20,866 - - 291,970 
Training, volunteering and other support 564,539 222,951 49,786 (837,276) - 

Total 2019 6,692,378 2,954,601 549,597 - 10,196,576 

Direct costs are costs, excluding staff costs, which are incurred directly for the specific areas of activity. These include costs such as rent, 
household costs, welfare, utilities, food, repairs, insurance and fundraising costs. 

 

Support costs include internal finance, maintenance, IT, human resources, administration and general management functions. Training 
costs relate to the cost of running an extensive training for staff and volunteers essential to their work environment. Volunteering costs are 
incurred in providing for and accommodating full time volunteers and coordinating full-time and part-time volunteer activity. These costs 
are allocated across other services on the basis of staff and volunteer numbers and utilisation as appropriate. 

 

Costs incurred on behalf of South East Simon occurred due to assistance and support provided by Cork Simon Community to South East 
Simon. These were fully recharged to South East Simon with no margin being earned on the transactions. This expenditure amounting to 
€26241 9 (2019: €291,970), of which €228,960 arose before South East Simon became part of the Group and €33,459 arose afterwards. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

6 Comparative Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the financial year ended 31 
December 2019 

 

Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Total 

 

funds funds building 2019 

   

fund 

  

€ € € € 
Income from: 

    

Donations 225,131 3,900,073 255,804 4,381,008 
Legacies - 206,574 - 206,574 
Other fundraising activities - 207,268 - 207,268 
Charitable activities 4,339,066 584,677 320,000 5,243,743 
Interest and other income - 4,732 - 4,732 
Income from South East Simon 98,539 - - 98,539 

Total income 4,662,736 4,903,324 575,804 10,141,864 

Expenditure on: 
Charitable activities 6,052,316 2,603,492 - 8,655,808 
Raising funds - 1,248,798 - 1,248,798 
Expenditure for South East Simon 291,970 - - 291,970 

Total expenditure 6,344,286 3,852,290 - 10,196,576 

Net loss on investments - 96,460 - 96,460 
Capital Assistance Scheme repayments 

   

relieved - 275,328 - 275,328 

 

Net (expenditure)/income (1,681,550) 1,422,822 575,804 317,076 
Transfer from restricted building fund - 54,506 (54,506) - 

Transfer from unrestricted fund 1,720,495 (1,720,495) - - 

Net movement in funds 38,945 (243,167) (521,298) 317,076 
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Cork Simon Community 

  

(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

  

7 Net incoming/(outgoing) resources 2020 2019 

 

€ € 
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources is stated after charging/(crediting): 

  

Staff costs (note 8) 7,126,905 6,692,378 
Depreciation (note 9) 615,637 549,598 
Capital Assistance Scheme financing repayments relieved (note 14) (361,432) (275,328) 
Grant amortised (1,350) - 

Directors' remuneration - - 

Directors' expenses 448 1,152 
Auditors' remuneration (including expenses) 

  

- Audit of the entity financial statements 9,471 4,920 
Other assurance services 861 861 
Bank interest and similar charges 13,989 12,243 
Other income (2,720) (2,356) 
Interest income (365) (2,376) 

None of the directors have been paid any remuneration or received any other financial benefit from Cork 
Simon. A total of €448 of out-of-pocket expenses were reimbursed to directors in 2020. 

 

8 Employee information and benefits 

  

(a) The average number of whole time equivalent staff employed by the 2020 2019 
Community during the year is analysed below: Number Number 

Homeless services iio 107 
Campaigning and research 

., 3 3 
Raising funds io 9 
Community employment scheme 9 11 
South East Simon Community 8 7 

 

140 137 

(b) The company's employment costs for all employees comprise: 2020 2019 

 

€ € 

Wages and salaries 6,355,084 5,925,923 
Temporary wage subsidy scheme (113,933) - 

Social insurance costs 625,501 606,040 
Other retirement benefit costs 260,253 160,415 

 

7,126,905 6,692,378 

Employment cost included in consolidated accounts 6,903,834 6,692,378 
Employment cost incurred for South East Simon prior to acquisition 223,071 - 

 

7,126,905 6,692,378 

(c) In 2020 the staff working in South East Simon Community were employees of Cork Simon 
Community. This is part of the ongoing integration of the Communities. 

  

(d) At the end of 2020, 190 individual people were employed. Of these 71 people were employed full 
time, 66 were part time, 16 were on CES and 37 were on the staff relief panel. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

8 Employee information and benefits - continued 

(e) Cork Simon employs professional staff with diverse skills and expertise to support the work we do. At 
the end of 2020, the number of whole-time equivalent staff with pay, excluding employer retirement 
benefit costs, falling within the following bands was: 

2020 2019 
Number Number 

Up to €29,999 38 59 
Between €30,000 and €39,999 52 22 
Between €40,000 and €49,999 30 25 
Between €50,000 and €59,999 13 15 
Between €60,000 and €69,999 2 - 

Between €70,000 and €79,999 2 2 
Between €80,000 and €89,999 2 3 
Between €90,000 and €99,999 1 1 

(f) Other retirement benefit costs related to a defined contribution pension scheme operated by Cork 
Simon. The total charge for the year amounted to €260,253 (2019: €160,416). Contributions of €Nil 
(2019: €Nil) are outstanding at balance sheet date. 

(g) Included in wages and salaries is €150,000 which is the cost of redundancy payments made to staff 
during 2020. 

(h) Key management personnel of the Community refers to the organisation's Director (not a member of 
the Board of Directors) who had a salary totalling €93,223 (2019: €92,154), employers' PRSI of 
€10,167 (2019: €9,959) and employer pension contribution of €4,661 (2019: €4,581). The directors' 
remuneration is €Nil (2019: €Nil). 

9 Tangible assets Freehold Fixtures, Motor Construction Total 

 

property fittings and vehicles in progress 

 

Group 

 

equipment 

    

€ € € € € 
Cost 

     

At 1 January 2020 14,216,033 343,219 11,700 744,235 15,315,187 
Acquisitions (note 22) 4,116,181 126,569 - - 4,242,750 
Additions 780,378 42,767 - 1,288,867 2,112,012 

At 31 December 2020 19,112,592 512,555 11,700 2,033,102 21,669,949 

  

Accumulated depreciation 

     

At 1 January 2020 (7,516,318) (275,472) (4,820) - (7,796,610) 
Acquisitions (note 22) (1,027,857) (97,803) - - (1,125,660) 
Charge for the year (580,221) (33,076) (2,340) - (615,637) 

At 31 December 2020 (9,124,396) (406,351) (7,160) - (9,537,907) 

    

Net book value 

     

At 1 January 2019 6,027,843 73,484 9,220 142,080 6,252,627 

At 31 December 2019 6,699,715 67,747 6,880 744,235 7,518,577 

At 31 December 2020 9,988,196 106,204 4,540 2,033,102 12,132,042 

Of the net book value of tangible assets, €533,088 relates to property assets which are categorised as 
restricted. These assets were financed by donations where the terms of the donation require the 
Community to use the property on an ongoing basis for its charitable purposes. 
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(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

 

9 Tangible assets - continued 

 

Company Freehold Fixtures, Motor Construction Total 
property fittings and vehicles in progress 

 

equipment 

 

€ € € € € 
Cost 

 

At January 2020 14,216,033 343,219 11,700 744,235 15,315,187 
Additions 780,378 42,464 - 1,288,867 2,111,709 

At 31 December 2020 14,996,411 385,683 11,700 2,033,102 17,426,896 

Accumulated depreciation 

 

At 1 January 2020 7,516,318 275,472 4,820 - 7,496,610 
Charge for the year 561,573 31,693 2,340  595,606 

At 31 December 2020 8,077,891 307,165 7,160 - 8,392,216 

Cost 

 

Net book value 

 

At 1 January 2019 6,027,843 73,484 9,220 142,080 6,252,627 

At 31 December 2019 6,699,715 67,747 6,880 744,235 7,518,577 

At 31 December 2020 6,918,520 
- 

78,518 4,540 2,033,102 9,034,680 

Of the net book value of tangible assets, €495,333 relates to property assets which are categorised as 
restricted. These assets were financed by donations where the terms of the donation require the 
Community to use the property on an ongoing basis for its charitable purposes. 

 

10 Financial assets - investments 2020 2019 
€ € 

Group and Company 

 

Investments held 

 

Managed funds 1,205,309 1,254,882 
Prize bonds 126 126 

1,205,435 1,255,008 

 

Managed 

 

funds 

 

€ 

Market value at 1 January 2020 1,254,882 
Unrealised loss in investments (49,573) 

Market value at 31 December 2020 1,205,309 

Historic cost at 31 December 2020 1,028,496 

All listed investments are held on recognised stock exchanges. 

 

These funds includes amounts subject to a six month notice period of €375,426 and other investments 
which can be converted to cash on demand of €829,883. These investments have been shown as long-

 

term investments because the directors intend to hold these investments as part of its on-going 
investment activities for more than one year at the balance sheet date. 
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Cork Simon Community 

  

(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

  

11 Stock 2020 2019 

 

€ € 
Group and Company 

  

Stock 4,936 6,436 

12 Debtors - Amounts falling due within one year 2020 2019 

 

€ € 
Group 

  

Prepayments and sundry debtors 79,742 72,223 
Amounts due from related undertaking - 47,524 
Grants receivable 286,834 420,939 

 

366,576 540,686 

 

€ € 
Company 

  

Prepayments and sundry debtors 64,447 72,223 
Amounts due from subsidiary undertaking 390,551 - 

Amounts due from related undertaking - 47,524 
Grants receivable 286,834 420,939 

 

741,832 540,686 

Amounts owning from subsidiary undertaking, South East Simon, are unsecured, non-interest bearing and 
repayable on demand. 

  

13 Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year 2020 2019 

 

€ € 
Group 

  

Bank overdraft (note 17) 1,095 - 

Trade creditors 106,342 65,784 
Value Added Tax 36,277 58,636 
PAYE and pay related social insurance 181,851 195,695 
Deferred income 721,051 445,005 
Accruals 512,859 250,564 
Capital Assistance Scheme loans (note 14) 529,846 303,384 

 

2,089,321 1,31 9,068 

 

IF € 
Company 

  

Trade creditors 86,024 65,784 
Value Added Tax 36,277 58,636 
PAYE and pay related social insurance 181,851 195,695 
Deferred income 721,051 445,005 
Accruals 497,618 250,564 
Capital Assistance Scheme loans (note 14) 380,303 303,384 

 

1,903,124 1,319,068 

Trade and other creditors are payable at various dates in the two months after the end of the financial 
year in accordance with the creditors usual and customary credit terms. 

  

Creditors for tax and social insurance are payable in the timeframe set down in the relevant legislation. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

13 Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year - continued 

Deferred income includes certain grant income related to future periods. The year-end balance relates to: 
an advance of €140,000 from the HSE towards the provision of future additional nursing service on the 
Adult Homeless Multi-Disciplinary Team; €341,907 from the HSE towards a stabilisation facility; €33,000 
from the HSE towards specialist staff as part of the Cork Region Housing First team; €47,000 from the 
HSE drugs and alcbhdl service towards addiction counsellor and dialectical behaviour therapy in Cork; 
€45,526 from the HSE drugs and alcohol service towards needle exchange service and safer injecting 
training; €51,948 from the HSE drugs and alcohol services towards COVID-19 responses; €13,672 frorfr 
Cork Education Training Board towards Great to Train costs; and €8,550 of event income, for the Cork 
Simon ball carried over to the 2021 event as deferred income. We release these to income as the related 
activity is performed Furthermore, an advance of €39 448 from the Department of Employment Affairs' 
and Social Protection on the Community Employment Scheme grant is-  released to net income as the 
grant advance is recovered by the scheme. 

14 Creditors - Amounts falling due after more than one year 2020 2019 

Group 
Loans under the-Cpital Assistance Scheme 9,869,700 5,242,665 

Thésé loans are repayable in the following years after 31 December -. 

Within one year (note 13) 529,846 303,3.84 

Between one and two years 525,725 303,34 
Between two and five years 1,552,453 881,3b8 
After five years 7,791,522 4,057,973 

9,869,700 5,242,665 

10,399,546 5,546,ó49 

Loans undet' Capital Assistance Schemes are received by the Group from the local authorities  byway of 
mortgage, and are repayable over the repayment years for each funding agreement of 20 to 30 years.  

The local authority has a charge over the Group's properties as security for the finance received. Uhd,e 
the terms of the mortgage, the Groqp is relieved of monthly capital and interest repayments so long as the 
Group .is in compliance with the specific conditions set out in the relevant mortgage agreement, primarily 
with fespect to the use and upkeep of the related properties. During, the year, €361,432 (2019: f 275,328) 
was recognised in the Consôlidatéd Statement of Financial Activities in respect of this matter. 

Under the terms of the Capital Assistance Schemes the amounts repayable to the lOcal authority as at,. the 
balance sheet date of €10,399,546 (2019 €5,546,049) represent the aggregate finance received to date 
amounting to €17,590,718 (2019 €11,389 792) as reduced by the cumulative repayments relieved to dte 
of €7,191,172 (2019: €5,843,743). The movementforthe year relates to new Capital Assistance Schemes 
funJing received and addition of South East Simon schemes (note 22), offset by repayments relieved in 
2020. 

37 



Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

• 14 Creditors - Amounts falling due after more than one year - continued 2020 2019 
€ € 

Company 

€ € 
Loans under the Capital Assistance Scheme 7,129,500 5,242,665 

These loans are repayable in the following years after 31 December 
Within one year (note 13) 380,303 303,384 

Between one and two years 376,182 303,384 
Between two and five years 1,103,824 881,308 
After five years 5,649,494 4,057,973 

7,129,500 5,242,665 

7,509,803 5,546,049 

Loans under Capital Assistance Schemes are received by the Company from the local authorities by way 
of mortgage, and are repayable over the repayment years for each funding agreement of 30 years. 

The local authority has a charge over the Company's properties as security for the finance received. 
Under the terms of the mortgage, the Group and Company is relieved of monthly capital and interest 
repayments so long as the Company is in compliance with the specific conditions set out in the relevant 
mortgage agreement, primarily with respect to the use and upkeep of the related properties. 

Under the terms of the Capital Assistance Schemes the amounts repayable to the local authority as at the 
balance sheet date of €7,509,803 (2019: €5,546,049) represent the aggregate finance received to date 
amounting to €1 3,697,361 (2019: €1 1,389,792) as reduced by the cumulative repayments relieved to date 
of €6,1 87,558 (2019: €5,843,743). The movement for the year relates to new Capital Assistance Schemes 
funding received, offset by repayments relieved in 2020. 
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Group 

Funds description 

 

Restricted funds 

 

HSE Section 39 care staff costs (a) 
HSE Drugs and alcohol service (b) 
CCC housing provision (c) 
CCC rapid rehousing (c) 
CCC intensive support (d) 
CCC Night Light (e) 
CCC Cork Region Housing First (f) 
DEASP CE scheme (g) 
European Solidarity Corps (h) 
Cork ETB youth drugs service (i) 
Cork ETB employment & training (j) 
Erasmus - street support project (k) 
South East Simon (I) 
Cork ETB MEAD (m) 
Goods in kind 

 

COVID-19 Stability Fund grant (n) 
Temporary Wage Subsidy (o) 
Restricted fundraising income 

 

Other restricted grants (p) 
Restricted income for South East (q) 
Simon 

 

Restricted building fund 

Total restricted funds 
Unrestricted funds 
Designated building fund 

Accumulated funds 

Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

15 Reconciliation of movements in accumulated funds 

Balance at Incoming Resources Investment South East Loan Transfers Balance at 
start of resources expended 

 

Simon repayments 

 

end of 
year 

    

relieved 

 

year 
€ € € € € € € € 
- 2,491,339 (3,403,079) - - - 911,740 - 

35,570 154,448 (196,661) - - - 43,120 36,477 
- 665,935 (1,302,656) - - - 636,721 - 

- 150,100 (360,204) - - - 210,104 - 

100,000 100,000 (114,970) - - - 14,970 100,000 
- 195,260 (195,260) - - - - - 

- 191,101 (178,980) - - - - 12,121 
- 296,962 (297,750) - - - 788 - 

- 27,348 (27,348) - - - - - 

- 50,541 (50,541) - - - - - 

10,000 7,898 (17,898) - - - - - 

(11,021) 11,021 - - - - - - 

- 228,960 (35,529) - - - (193,431) - 

- 21,420 (21,420) - - - - - 

- 51,656 (53,156) - - - 1,500 - 

- 200,000 (200,000) - - - - - 

- 226,592 (226,592) - - - - - 

17,050 55,790 (61,403) - - - - 11,437 
- 51,026 (16,268) - 79,240 - - 113,998 

151,599 5,177,397 (6,759,715) - 79,240 

 

1,625,512 274,033 
1,089,410 944,000 - - 21,759 - (54,664) 2,000,505 

1,241,009 6,121,397 (6,759,715) - 100,999 - 1,570,848 2,274,538 
2,252,025 5,743,619 (3,538,020) (49,573) 6,458 361,432 (1,850,848) 2,925,093 
2,430,000 - - - 20,000 - 280,000 2,730,000 

5,923,034 11,865,016 (10,297,735) (49,573) 127,457 361,432 - 7,929,631 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

      

15 Reconciliation of movements in accumulated funds - continued 

     

Company 

 

Balance at Incoming Resources Investment Loan Transfers Balance at 

  

start of resources expended repayments 

 

end of 
Funds description 

 

year 

  

relieved 

 

year 
Restricted funds 

 

€ € € € € € € 
HSE Section 39 care staff costs (a) - 2,491,339 (3,403,079) - 911,740 - 

HSE Drugs and alcohol service (b) 35,570 154,448 (196,661) - - 43,120 36,477 
CCC housing provision (c) - 665,935 (1,302,656) - 636,721 - 

CCC rapid rehousing (c) - 150,100 (360,204) - 210,104 - 

CCC intensive support (d) 100,000 100,000 (114,970) - 14,970 100,000 
CCC Night Light (e) - 195,260 (195,260) - - - - 

CCC Cork Region Housing First (f) - 191,101 (178,980) - - - 12,121 
DEASP CE scheme (g) - 296,962 (297,750) - - 788 - 

European Solidarity Corps (h) - 27,348 (27,348) - - - 

Cork ETB youth drugs service (i) - 50,541 (50,541) - - - 

Cork ETB employment & training (j) 10,000 7,898 (17,898) - -. - - 

Erasmus - street support project (k) (11,021) 11,021 - -- •-• - - 

South East Simon (I) - 262,419 (68,988) .- (193,431) - 

Cork ETB MEAD (m) - 21,420 (21,420) - •- - 

 

Goods in kind 

 

- 51,656 (53,156) - - 1,500 - 

COVID-19 Stability Fund grant (n) - 200,000 (200,000) - - - 

 

Temporary Wage Subsidy (o) - 

  

- 

  

Restricted fundraising income 

 

- 226,592 (226,592) - - - 

Other restricted grants (p) 17,050 55,790 (61,403) - - - 11,437 

  

151,599 5,159,830 (6,776,906) 

 

1,625,512 160,035 
Restricted building fund 

 

1,089,410 944,000 - - - (54,505) 1,978,905 

Total restricted funds 

 

1,241,009 6,103,830 (6,776,906) - - 1,571,007 2,138,940 
Unrestricted funds 

 

2,252,025 5,620,373 (3,423,530) (49,573) 343,815 (1,571,007) 3,172,103 
Designated building fund 

 

2,430,000 - - - - 
- 2,430,000 

Accumulated funds 

 

5,923,034 11,724,203 (10,200,436) (49,573) 343,815 - 7,741,043 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

15 Reconciliation of movements in accumulated funds - continued 

(a) Health Service Executive, Area 4, social inclusion, adult homeless services, Section 39 annual grant 
and pay restoration grant towards costs of care and support staff in high support houses and the 
emergency shelter in 2020. Total includes one off 2020 grants of €90,000 towards staff costs relating 
to COVlD-19 demands, out of hours cover for Housing First service and other staffing. 

(b) Health Service Executive, Area 4, social inclusion, local drugs and alcohol task force, Section 39 
annual grant towards staff and administration costs of the Cork Simon street outreach service in 
2020. Total includes one off 2020 grants of €58,949 towards needle exchange service, overdose 
prevention, and COVI D-1 9 isolation workers. 

(c) Cork City Council, Section 10 annual bed-night and settlement grant towards the provision of 
homeless services accommodation and tenancy sustainment supports in 2020 through the rapid 
rehousing and settlement team. 

(d) Cork City Council, Section 10 homeless services grant towards the staff costs of the Cork Simon 
extended Housing First service in 2020 through the intensive settlement support team. 

(e) Cork City Council, Section 10 grant towards the staff costs of the Night Light and enhanced rough 
sleeper service as part of the Cork City winter strategy in 2020. 

(f) Cork City Council grant toward Cork Regional Housing First service. 

(g) Department of Employment Affairs and Social Protection grant for the Community Employment 
Scheme staffing, materials and training costs. The schemes run from October to October and the new 
scheme commenced October 2020. 

(h) European Commission, Léargas, European Solidarity Corps grant towards volunteer support costs. 
The grant period covered 24 months from September 2019 to August 2020. 

(i) Department of Children Equality, Disability, Integration and Youth grants through Cork Education & 
Training Board. A grant of €25,270 under the Young Peoples Facilities and Services Fund for the first 
6 months of the year. A grant of €25,271 under the provisions of UBU (Your Place Your Space) for 
the second half of the year. The grants are towards the staff and administration costs of the Cork 
Simon youth homelessness and drugs prevention service. 

(j) Cork Education and Training Board, community education grant, under the Great to Train 
programme, towards the cost of training courses and back to training and employment, as part of the 
Cork Simon Employment and Training programme. 

(k) Erasmus+, Street Support Project. The final portion of the grant towards staff and project costs of the 
Safer Saturday Programme. 

(I) Transactions incurred on behalf of South East Simon occurred due to assistance and support 
provided by Cork Simon Community to South East Simon. These have been recharged to South East 
Simon in full, with no margin. 

(m)Cork Education and Training Board, grant under the Mitigating Against Education Disadvantage to 
provide training and technology supports to people in our Employment and Training service. 

(n) Government COVlD-1 9 Stability Scheme grant, through Pobal, towards critical supports and services. 
The amount was used to cover non-pay costs including rent, utilities, insurance, pension and other 
overhead costs, not otherwise part of grant arrangements. 

(o) Government COVID-1 9 supports under the Temporary Wage Subsidy Scheme. We applied for the 
subsidy for relevant eligible staff posts that were not subject to other grant funding. This balance of 
€113,933 has been accounted for as an offset to wages and salaries charges, as required under FRS 
102 (note 8). 
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€ € 

2,730,000 274,033 

fund 2020 
€ € 

858,085 12,132,042 
- 1,205,435 

1,142,420 6,551,175 

(2,089,321) 

(9,869,700) 

2,000,505 

Restricted 
building 

fund 
€ 

836,485 

7,929,631 

Total 
funds 
2020 

€ 
9,034,680 
1,205,435 

300,000 

2,730,000 274,033 

Designated Restricted 
fund fund 

€ € 

Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

15 Reconciliation of movements in accumulated funds - continued 

(p) Other restricted grants 
€ 

Local authority, one off furniture grants for tenants 8,644 
COVID-1 9 Community Outreach Programme, one off grant 1,800 
DEASP, one off grant, for PPE 1,963 
HSE one off grant, for out of hours service in South East 12,000 
Cork City Council one off, to COVID-1 9 related IT supports 3,000 
Comic Relief, one off grant, for COVID-1 9 related IT supports 8,383 
Community Foundation for Ireland, for service to young people 20,000 

55.790 

(q) Restricted income for South East Simon € 
Health Service Executive Area 5, social inclusion, section 39 one off grant 49,605 
towards training in homeless and substance misuse services, healthy living skills 
supports and COVID-19 related costs. 
Fundraising 1,421 

51,026 

Through FoodCloud we receive food and related products under the Fund for European Aid to the Most 
Deprived (FEAD) programme in Ireland. This supports individuals availing of meals provided at Cork Simon 
services and through food packs. 

16 Analysis of net assets between funds 

Group Unrestricted Designated Restricted Restricted Total 
fund fund fund buildina funds 

Tangible assets 
Investments 
Current assets 
Creditors falling due within 
one year 
Creditors due after more 
than one year 

Total funds at 
31 December 2020 

Company 

Tangible assets 
Investments 
Investment in South East 
Simon 
Current assets 
Creditors falling due within 
one year 
Creditors due after more 
than one year 

Total funds at 
31 December 2020  

€ 
11,273,957 

1,205,435 
2,404,722 

(2,089,321) 

In acc 7flC\ 

2,925,093 

Unrestricted 
fund 

€ 
8,198,195 
1,205,435 

300,000 

2,501,097 2,430,000 

(1,903,124) - 

(7,129,500) - 

3,172,103 2,430,000 

160,035 1,142,420 6,233,552 

- 
- (1,903,124) 

- - (71')onrn 

160,035 1,978,905 7,741,043 
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(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

  

17 Reconciliation of net incoming resources to net cash flow from 2020 2019 
charitable activities € € 

Group 

  

Income/(expense) for the reporting year 

  

(as per Statement of Financial Activities) - Net income/(expense) 1,879,140 317,076 
Depreciation charges 615,637 549,598 
Interest income (358) (2,376) 
Decrease/(increase) in stock 1,500 4,820 
(increase)/decrease in debtors (187,583) (318,104) 
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income 276,046 (11,505) 
Increase in creditors 187,284 145,862 
Losses/(gains) on investments 49,573 (96,460) 
Capital Assistance Scheme loan repayments relieved (361,432) (275,328) 

Net cash provided by charitable activities 2,459,807 313,583 

Analysis of net funds At 1 Acquired Cash Other At 31 
January through flow non-cash December 

2020 investment in charges 2020 
South East 

  

Simon 

  

(note 22) 

  

€ € € € € 

Cash at bank and in hand 3,164,060 358,784 2,656,819 - 6,179,663 
Bank overdraft - - (1,095) - (1,095) 

3,164,060 358,784 2,655,724 - 6,178,568 

Loans under capital assistance (5,546,049) (2,907,358) (2,307,571) 361,432 (10,399,546) 
scheme (note 14) 

  

Net debt (2,381,989) (2,548,574) 348,153 361,432 (4,220,978) 

Company 

  

Reconciliation of net incoming resources to net cash flow from 2020 2019 
charitable activities € € 

Income/(expense) for the reporting year (as per Statement of Financial 

  

Activities) - Net income/(expense) 1,818,009 317,076 
Depreciation charges 595,606 549,598 
Interest income (358) (2,376) 
Decrease/(increase) in stock 1,500 4,820 
(increase)/decrease in debtors (201,146) (318,104) 
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income 276,046 (11,505) 
Increase in creditors 231,089 145,862 
Losses/(gains) on investments 49,573 (96,460) 
Capital Assistance Scheme loan repayments relieved (343,815) (275,328) 

Net cash provided by charitable activities 2,426,506 313,583 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

17 Reconciliation of net incoming resources to net cash flow from charitable activities - continued 

Company 

Analysis of net funds At 1 Cash Other At 31 

 

January flow non-cash December 

 

2020 

 

charges 2020 

 

€ € € € 

Cash at bank and in hand 3,164,060 2,322,724 - 5,486,784 
Loans under capital assistance scheme 

    

(note 14) (5,546,049) (2,307,569) 343,815 (7,509,803) 

Net debt (2,381,989) 15,155 343,815 (2,023,019) 

18 Taxation 

No provision for taxation has been made because the company, being a charitable organisation, is 
exempt from tax under Section 11 (6) of the Corporation Tax Act, 1976. 

19 Related party transactions 

Group 
As part of the supports it provides, Cork Simon Community provides payroll and accounting services for 
the South East Simon Community. In 2020, before South East Simon Community became part of the 
Group, the income and expenditure transactions incurred by Cork Simon on behalf of South East Simon 
amounted to €228,960 (2019: €291,971). These were fully recharged to South East Simon with no margin 
being earned on the transactions that occurred during the year. 

See note 7 for disclosure of the directors' remuneration and note 8 for key management compensation. 

During the year Simon Communities of Ireland dispersed €51,898 of fundraising income to Cork Simon 
Community. 

Company 
As part of the supports it provides, Cork Simon Community provides payroll and accounting services for 
the South East Simon Community. In 2020, the income and expenditure transactions incurred by Cork 
Simon on behalf of South East Simon amounted to €262,419 (2019: €291,971). These were fully 
recharged to South East Simon with no margin being earned on the transactions that occurred during the 
year. The balance owing to Cork Simon at the 31 December 2020 was €390,551 (2019: €47,524, 
comprised of gross debtor of €240,955, net of impairment provision of €193,431). In 2020, the Company 
reversed the impairment provision of €193,431. 

In 2020 Cork Simon transferred €300,000 to South East Simon towards its Restricted Building Fund 
(sinking fund) as a capital contribution. 

During the year Simon Communities of Ireland dispersed €51,898 of fundraising income to Cork Simon 
Community. 

20 Events after the balance sheet date 

Group and Company 
There have been no significant events affecting the Community since the year-end. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

21 Capital commitments 2020 2019 
€ € 

Group 
Authorised by directors but not contracted 115,000 562,906 
Contracted not provided 518,000 1643,809 

633,000 2,206,715 

Company 
Authorised by directors but not contracted - - 

Contracted not provided 518,000 1,643,809 

518,000 1,643,809 

Capital commitments relate to the proposed development of 8 self-contained residential units in Cork city 
and the purchase of one apartment. Capital Assistance Scheme funding has been allocated by the 
Department of Environment, Climate and Communications, but is not yet received or recorded by the 
company. 

22 Acquisition of South East Simon - merger accounting 
* 

Group 

On 19 November 2020, the Company acquired control of Simon Community ( South East ) Company 
Limited by Guarantee ("South East Simon"), registered at 10A Waterside, Waterford. This arose following 
a change of South East Simon's constitution on that date which gave the Company the ability to control 
its board. 

Cork Simon has no beneficial interest over the net assets of South East Simon. Whilst the net assets of 
both entities are combined because of this control arrangement, no non-controlling interest is deemed 
applicable in the Group financial statements as both entities are separate public interest entities under 
FRS 102. 

The company has used the merger accounting method to account for the acquisition of South East Simon 
in the Group financial statements. The carrying amounts of the acquired entity's assets and liabilities are 
not adjusted to fair value, although appropriate adjustments are made to achieve uniformity of accounting 
policies in the combining entities. No new goodwill arises under merger accounting, and the acquired 
entity's assets and liabilities are brought in at the amounts at which the entity recorded them in its books 
before the combination (subject to adjustment for uniform accounting policies). 

This is primarily comprised of certain property assets, debtors, current assets and Capital Assistance 
Scheme loans. The consideration paid was €Nil and the book value of the net assets acquired is 
summarised in the table below. No adjustments were required to achieve uniformity of accounting 
policies in the combining entities. 

€ 
Tangible assets 3,117,090 
Debtors 28,858 
Bank 358,784 
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year (600,271) 
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year (2,777,004) 

127,457 

These net assets are included in the group financial statements from the date of the transaction. The 
opposite balance has been included in Other reserves in the Group financial statements. 

Income and net increase in funds since the acquisition are €174,272 and €61,131 respectively. 
Additionally, after the acquisition, Cork Simon transferred €300,000 to South East Simon towards its 
Restricted Building Fund (sinking fund). 

Aggregate net assets of South East Simon as at 31 December 2020 are €488,588. 
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Cork Simon Community 
(Not having share capital and limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

22 Acquisition of South East Simon - merger accounting (continued) 

Company 2020 2019 
€ € 

AtlJanuary  

Capital contribution given 300,000 - 

At 31 December 300,000 - 

There is no impact on the company's separate financial statements following the change of South East 
Simon's constitution on 19 November 2020 which gave the Company the ability to control its board. 
Notwithstanding this change in control, the Company has no financial beneficial interest in South East 
Simon, so this transaction does not give rise to a capital contribution for Cork Simon. 

In 2020 Cork Simon transferred €300,000 to South East Simon towards its Restricted Building Fund 
(sinking fund). 

23 Net movement in funds for the financial year 

Group 
There was no material difference between the reported profit and the profit prepared under the historical 
cost convention. 

Company 
The Company is availing of the exemption contained in Section 304 of the Companies Act 2014 and as a 
result its statement of financial activity has not been presented and will not be annexed to the annual 
return. The Company's net increase in funds for the financial year is €1 ,81 8,009 (2019: €317,076 net 
increase). 

24 Approval of financial statements 

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 August 
2021 and were signed on its behalf on that date. 
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